#### MINUTES OF THE MEETING STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MONTANA STATE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

March 13, 1985

The meeting of the State Administration Committee was called to order by Chairman Sales at 9:00 a.m. on the above date in Room 317 of the State Capitol.

ROLL CALL: All members were present.

CONSIDERATION OF SENATE BILL NO. 163: Sen. Ethel Harding, Senate District #25, said that this should have been changed in the codification process which would delete the department of commerce's responsibility to provide standard and sample petition forms to cities and towns.

<u>PROPONENTS</u>: Don Dooley, Department of Commerce, said this was transferred in 1979 to the department of community affairs, then to the department of administration and is currently in the department of commerce. He said the secretary of state has the duty to take care of this.

PROPONENTS: There were no proponents.

OPPONENTS: There were no opponents to the bill.

There being no questions from the Committee, Sen. Harding closed, asking for passage of the bill.

CONSIDERATION OF SENATE BILL NO. 169: Sen. Ethel Harding, Senate District #25, said this was the answer to all small districts and cities and towns' problems with elections and came from the office of the secretary of state. They worked on this over a period of two years with these districts, cities and towns and clerks and recorders.

<u>PROPONENTS</u>: Jean Johnson, Secretary of State, Elections, gave brief history of mail ballot procedure and what it does. It was created out of a need to have a cost effective election and said there is a substantial cost savings in mail ballots. She said the procedure is similar to an absentee ballot and is more convenient. She showed a sample ballot from Vancouver, Washington and explained the process to the Committee.

Alan Robertson, Legal Counsel for the Secretary of State, handed out a review of the bill section by section and went through the points contained in the handout. He stated that this is an option and not mandatory. He explained that the mail ballot is essentially an absentee ballot and the only people to be concerned about would be the people who would be out of town during the mailing period, however, they could leave their forwarding address and the ballot would be mailed to them. The ballots may be mailed back or they can return the ballot in person.

The Senate questioned whether people should have to purchase postage to return the ballots, however, they could drive to the election administrator's office and return the ballot. There is nothing prohibiting a spouse returning a ballot for his/her spouse or children. The person returning the ballot would have his signature verified but the ballot being returned by another person would be treated as if it had been returned by mail. The bill provides for signature verification. Voting is a right of the people but there are certain requirements for voting.

Betty Lund, Election Administrator from Ravalli County, said voter turnout has increased significantly in mail ballot elections. It would be a tremendous cost savings and she said that the election administrator and local governing bodies have to work together. She said it would increase the integrity of the election system and there would be more control of the ballots. Voter acceptance would also be a consideration. She said it would be very well accepted by voters and certainly the election administrators. Their purpose is to do the best they can to get the voters to vote.

**OPPONENTS:** Margaret Davis, League of Women Voters, passed out proposed amendments, Exhibit #4, to the Committee members. She said the League is not an opponent to election by mail ballot but they had such extensive amendments they felt they should appear as an opponent rather than a proponent. She also read her prepared testimony which is attached. If the ballot is to be by mail have it strictly by mail and not open polling places. She also stated that school districts have been omitted from the bill and said it was interesting to note that these elections by mail have proved very effective for school districts. She suggested that the staff researcher look at the amendments in conjunction with the bill. She also said that other states have provided for prepaid postage on the ballots which still costs less than holding an election.

There were no further opponents.

The Chairman then asked if there were any other proponents that wished to speak briefly.

<u>PROPONENTS</u>: Ken Kelly, Montana Water Development Association and Montana Irrigators, Inc., said there are 450 water users in the valley and at their annual meeting they had 22 present. In view of this, the minority is ruling rather than the majority and felt that the ballot by mail might get it back into the hands of the majority.

Arnold Peterson supported the bill without any changes. He said he would be driving 22 miles to vote and would not resent paying the postage to return his ballot instead.

Alec Hansen, Montana League of Cities and Towns, said it makes the process more convenient, better participation and offers a possibility of saving some money.

Teri England, Montana PIRG, said it would also strengthen the democratic process.

Joan Peres, Montana Association of Clerks and Recorders, strongly supported the bill.

Gary Pringle, Clerk and Recorder of Gallatin County, urged support of the bill.

DISCUSSION OF SENATE BILL NO. 169: Rep. Nelson asked why the school districts were not included in the bill and Mr. Robertson said simply because they didn't want to fight the issue. They checked with all the school associations and they didn't want to be included so without them wanting to be included they were just omitted.

Rep. Harbin asked if the ballot was deposited in the mail with no postage would the election administrator accept the ballot. Mr. Robertson said that would probably be up to the election administrator. The ballot could not be returned to the sender because there is no return address.

Chairman Sales asked Margaret Davis if the Secretary of State's office contacted the League of Women Voters for any input on this bill. She replied they did not on this bill, however, they have in the past.

Jean Johnson said they worked with the Advisory Council in drafting the bill. They took it to the Montana Association of Clerks and Recorder over two years ago. She said she did visit with Mrs. Davis before the bill came before the Senate Committee and asked if they could work together on it. This bill was a combination of Advisory Council, clerks and recorders, water people, drainage people and all people who deal with elections.

Rep. Cody asked if there were any problems with the amendments submitted by the League of Women Voters. Ms. Johnson said this morning was the first time they have had a copy of the amendments. Rep. Cody asked if she would have any problem changing the bill with those amendments. Ms. Johnson explained that the mail ballot is totally optional and as far as a second polling place for the ballots to be delivered, that is the determination of the election administrator. This would be staffed by a deputized person, not by three judges. Rep. Cody asked why the counties couldn't use a bulk mailing permit on the ballot return envelope. Ms. Johnson said that the Legislature decided years ago that when you vote absentee the voter pays his own postage.

Rep. Jenkins questioned Mrs. Davis about the cost of driving to the polling place as compared to mailing the ballot. She said that Oregon has a law that provides for prepaid postage for ballot issues and only the ones that are returned are paid for.

Rep. Cody asked why these amendments weren't submitted to the Senate Committee. Mrs. Davis said she was unable to be at that hearing and they were addressed with both Jean Johnson and Larry Akey of the Secretary of State's office. She said they have been kept informed on what the League's position was since they first got the bill.

There being no further questions, Sen. Harding closed, saying that the mail ballot is purely optional. She said that we have heard from the small districts, the cities and towns. The small cities and towns have to go by the election codes set up by the Legislature. These small cities and towns want a good process but not the cost. As to the prepaid postage, a number of years ago it was decided that an absentee voter could pay their own return postage. Driving to the polls would cost more than the She said if the Committee is concerned with the 22¢ stamp. amendments submitted that a subcommittee be appointed to get together with Mrs. Davis and Jean Johnson but do not allow for prepaid postage. These small districts cannot afford to pay postage for return ballots. She also said that any problems that might develop with the system could be taken care of next vear.

CONSIDERATION OF SENATE BILL NO. 164: Sen. Ted Neuman, District #21, said this bill would allow the board of investments to hire their own personnel. Currently, they hire only the investment officer and his assistant. He presented a list of 13 other state agencies that hire their staff and would make the board of investments consistent with the other agencies. It also defines the statute of who keeps track of the accounts and books of the funds the board of investment administers and gives this authorization to the board of investments.

<u>PROPONENTS</u>: Dave Ashley, Department of Administration, supported the bill. He said it would provide for the board of investments to hire their own staff and that they keep a tally of the accounts invested in each fund that they administer.

Jim Howeth, Board of Investments, supported the bill.

OPPONENTS: There were no opponents to SB 164.

DISCUSSION OF SENATE BILL NO. 164: Rep. Cody asked what the checks and balances would be for the board of investments. Mr. Howeth said they are the only state agency in the Constitution that requires them to be audited every year. Rep. Cody asked who would do that audit. Mr. Howeth replied that it would be by the Legisaltive Auditor or by an outside auditor chosen by

the Legislative Auditor.

Mr. Howeth also stated that this bill would delete the duplication of the State Treasurer and the Board of Investments. He said that currently they balance the securities of the state agencies. This is all entered into the central accounting system. There would only be one agency balancing instead of the board of investments and the state treasurer.

Mr. Ashley said they keep a fund balance that represents all the securities in the funds in the central accounting system. This bill provides for what the board of investments is already doing. He explained the checks and balances between the state treasurer and the board of investments.

In closing, Sen. Neuman said that Rep. Darko will carry the bill.

CONSIDERATION OF SENATE BILL NO. 198: Sen. Chris Christiaens, Senate District #17, sponsor of the bill, said it would be doing something rather simple which would be placing all registration fees and assessments on gross receipts of passenger tramways into the state special revenue fund. He said that the general fund would not lose the interest earnings from the tramway collections as a result of the proposed funding change.

PROPONENTS: Karen Munro, Administrator of the Centralized Services Division of the Department of Administration, read her prepared testimony which is attached as Exhibit #5, and spoke in support of the bill. She also presented a financial analysis of the program for 1978 - 1984.

Phil Hauck, Architecture and Engineering Division, said they administer this program in the state of Montana and that there are 74 ski lifts in Montana. The program started in 1969 when they asked to be regulated. He recommended that they be given the opportunity keep their own money in their own fund. They try to inspect the ski lifts twice a year and there are a lot of safety projects that the money could be used for. He said this is actually ski area money that they want to use for their safety programs and urged the support of the Committee.

OPPONENTS: There were no opponets.

There being no questions from the Committee, Sen. Christiaens closed saying there has been a surplus of \$3,000 that has not been appropriated. Some of that money could be used to purchase equipment for inspections for safety purposes. He thought this would be a step in the right direction. He also said Rep. Darko would carry the bill.

CONSIDERATION OF SENATE BILL NO. 162: Sen. M.K. Daniels, sponsor, said the bond validating act has been enacted biennually for some years.

This takes care of any irregularities or other concerns with the issuance of bonds. This makes everyone happy including the bond buyers, the bond attorneys, etc.

PROPONENTS: Dave Ashley rose in support of the bill.

OPPONENTS: There were no opponents.

DISCUSSION OF SENATE BILL NO. 162: Rep. Fritz asked why this is done every two years. Chairman Sales said that the bonding procedures are very complicated in the law. Every two years they just say that everything has been done; the bonds are sold, everyone is happy and the legislature validates the procedures.

Rep. Cody asked if anyone had ever complained in the past. The feeling was that if anything ever goes to court this would not stop those proceedings.

Without further comment, Sen. Daniels closed.

The Committee then went into executive session on the bills previously heard.

DISPOSITION OF SENATE BILL NO. 162: Rep. Smith moved that SB 162 <u>BE CONCURRED IN</u>, seconded by Rep. Peterson. The motion CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. Chairman Sales will carry the bill on the floor.

DISPOSITION OF SENATE BILL NO. 198: Rep. O'Connell moved that SB 198 BE CONCURRED IN, seconded by Rep. Harbin. The motion CARRIED with Reps. Peterson, Smith and Campbell voting "no".

Rep. Cody remarked that she was amazed to hear Mr. Hauck say that the tramway operators asked for a tax on themselves so they could be inspected. Chairman Sales said it is much easier to get insurance if they are inspected.

DISPOSITION OF SENATE BILL NO. 164: Rep. Cody moved that SB 164 BE CONCURRED IN, seconded by Rep. Compton. The motion CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY and Rep. Darko will carry the bill.

DISPOSITION OF SENATE BILL NO. 169: Rep. Cody moved that a subcommittee be appointed for the purpose of studying the League of Women Voter's amendments and the bill itself. She said she hadn't had time to study the bill and would like to see the amendments put into the bill and see what the changes are.

Rep. Phillips said that this should be given some time to work. They have worked on this for two years and the League isn't involved in running elections like these other people are. Rep. Harbin concurred with Rep. Phillips and made the <u>SUBSTITUTE</u> <u>MOTION BE CONCURRED IN</u>, seconded by Rep. Smith.

The Substiture Motion CARRIED with Rep. Cody voting "no". Rep. Hand will carry SB 169 on the floor.

DISPOSITION OF SENATE BILL NO. 163: Rep. O'Connell moved that SB 163 BE CONCURRED IN, seconded by Rep. Peterson. The motion CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. Rep. Phillips will carry the bill.

There being no further business, the Committee adjourned at 10:40 a.m.

WALTER R. SALES, **G**hairman

ls

65-3-3

(Type in committee members' names and have 50 printed to start).

### DAILY ROLL CALL

State Administration COMMITTEE

49th LEGISLATIVE SESSION -- 1985

Date 3/13/85

NAME	PRESENT	ABSENT	EXCUSED
Chairman Walter Sales	~		
V-Chairman Helen O'Connell	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Campbell, Bud			
Compton, Duane	-		
Cody, Dorothy	-		
Fritz, Harry	-		
Garcia, Rodney			fa
Hayne, Harriet	-		
Harbin, Raymond			
Holliday, Gay			
Jenkins, Loren	-		
Kennerly, Roland	-		
Moore, Janet	~		
Nelson, Richard			
Peterson, Mary Lou	r.		
Phillips, John			
Pistoria, Paul			
Smith, Clyde			

Please attach to minutes.

5B 163 YES 5B 169 ye amendmen No YES on I Finh

CAMPbell 162 yes 163 yes to on amendmend 164 100 149 yes ho on amendments 198 NO

S<sup>B</sup>/ler3 yes amenducents me Jore-Jackus a a s 

.

wat Siles, the 420-S.B. 163 Jes-SB.169 & NO on America-mint Paul &, Pistoria



··· -		March	13
SPEAKER			· .
We, your committee on	State Administr	ation	
having had under consideration	Senate		Bill No
reading cop	oy ( <u>Blue</u> ) color		
DELETE DEPARTMENT	OF COMMERCE SAM	PEE PETITIONS	FOR MUNICIPALITIES
ی د			

Senate	163
Respectfully report as follows: That	Bill No.

### DE CONCURRED IN

00 PASS X

STATE PUB. CO. Helena, Mont. Walter R. Sales,

......

Chairman.

COMMITTEE SECRETARY

			March 13	
MR	SPEAKER			
We, your co	ommittee on	State Administration Conate Bill No. 169		
having had unde	r consideration	Conato		Bill No. 169
Third	reading co	oy () color		
AUTHO	RIZING OPTIO	TO CONDUCT CERTAIN EL	ections by 3	AIL BALLOT

Respectfully report as follows: That	169
--------------------------------------	-----

# BE CONCURRED IN

DO PASS

Walter R. Sales, Chairman.

		. •					Marc]	n 13	19
<b>P</b> ú <b>SP</b> ú	<b></b>								
SP1	eari	SR					· .		
We, your cor	nmitte	ee on	tate	Ada	inistration	n			
ving bad under	consi	derationS	enate	•				F	ill No. 154
Third		reading copy (				••••••			
		reading copy (	color	)					
BOARD	of	Investments	<b>TO</b> 1	IRE	PERSONNEL	and	REEP	CERTAIN	RECORDS

.....

BE CONCURRED IN

DO PASS

STATE PUB. CO. Helena, Mont.

Halter R. Sales, Chairman.

.

COMMUTTER CECOETADY

March 13 85 

SPEAKER MR. ..... State Administration We, your committee on ..... Third Blue reading copy (\_\_\_ \_) color TRANNAY FEES AND ASSESSMENTS IN FUND FOR DEPARTMENT USE

Sanate 198 

BE CONCURRED IN

.

DO PASS

March 13 35 

SPEAKER

MR. .....

We, your committee o	on	State	Administration	
having had under considera	ation	Senate	5	Bill No
Third	_ reading copy (	Blue		
		color		

### EXTENSION OF BOND VALIDATING ACT

Respectfully report as follows:	That	.Bill No	162
---------------------------------	------	----------	-----

### BE CONCURRED IN

.

DO PASS

#### SENATE BILL NO. 169

Ex, #1

#### Section by Section Review

- Sec. 1 <u>Statement of Purpose</u>: Outlines policies behind act. Clearly states that intent is to provide option.
- Sec. 2 Definitions: Self explanatory.
- Sec. 3 <u>MBE Procedure</u>: Outlines major steps of MBE. Defines <u>MBE in terms of procedures used</u>.
- Sec. 4 MBE not mandatory authorized -- prohibited:
  - (1) Act is an option -- not mandatory
  - (2) Specific cases when may be used.
    - (a) Districts with annual elections.
      - drainage districts;
    - irrigation districts;
    - fire districts;
    - (b) In 3rd Class cities (1,000 to 5,000) ballot issues and non-partisan candidate elections.
    - (c) Towns (under 1,000) any election conducted by the town.

POINT: SB 169 is a response to a two-year study of receiving problems in the election area. The cost and frequency of elections, not to mention the dismal rate of participation, are very real problems for small cities and towns. A quick conversation with officials in places like Moore and Judith Gap will verify that fact.

The mail ballot option is one possible solution. Disincorporation for small towns is another. Forcing everyone to live with the problem is the third.

(d) County water and sewer districts in unincorporated areas.

**POINT:** When these districts can't "tie in" with a municipal election, thus sharing both the cost and the turn out factor, they have to stand alone, bearing the whole cost of the election and relying on their "single issue" to bring folks to the polls.

(e) "special" elections on ballot issues <u>only</u> in any local government unit (city, county or special district).

#### (3) Prohibited elections:

- (a) any regularly scheduled primary or general held in an even-numbered year.
- (b) any regularly scheduled primary or general held in an odd-numbered year <u>except</u> (1) non-partisan elections in 3rd Class cities or (2) elections in towns.
- (c) any school district election of any kind or purpose.
- (d) any recall election
- (e) any election involving candidates except
- candidates for trustee of a special district (fire, irrigation, drainage, or water and sewer);
- non-partisan candidates in 3rd Class cities;
- all candidates in towns.

POINT: Campaigning in an MBE will be different, so almost all candidate elections have been excluded. But as any rural Montanan knows, politics in communities with only a few hundred voters are quite different from politics in larger cities.

- (f) special elections being held in conjunction with any regularly scheduled primary or general.
- Sec. 5 <u>General election laws apply</u>: Balance of Title 13 covers things not specifically dealt with in this act.
- Sec. 6 <u>Role of Secretary of State</u>: Specifies role of his office.
- Sec. 7 <u>How MBE Initiated</u>: <u>Either</u> the Election Administrator or the governing body.
- Sec. 8 <u>Initiation by Gov Body</u>: Pass resolution asking election administrators to conduct election by mail ballot. Election administrators can say no.
- Sec. 9 <u>Initiation by Election Administrator</u>: If election administrator wants to do a MBE she writes a plan and sends it to the Gov. Body.

**POINT:** Mail ballot elections are entirely new to Montana. The proponents feel strongly that, at least in the beginning, extra measures must be taken to guard against mistakes. We would not be comfortable having an irrigation district, for example, take on this new procedure on their own.

That is why the election administrator is injected in the process. That is also the reason for the written plan and its review by the Secretary of State. The jurisdiction is given a "final say" because it's their election. The election administrator is given a "final say" because it's a new process and she's the one with the knowledge and experience to ensure that it's implemented properly.

Over time, once the jurisdictions are familiar with the process, it may be possible to reduce the election administrator's discretion in this area and transfer more to the governing body by itself. But we need to have some experience with this system first.

Sec. 10 <u>Objection by political subdivisions</u>: Governing Body can say no by passing resolution.

> POINT: Process can be started by either the election administrator or the Gov. Body, and either can say no. Consent of both is required.

- Sec. 11 Written Plan to Secretary of State: This is needed, at least initially, to insure that uniformity is maintained and procedures are correctly followed. The "written plan" idea has been used successfully in other states as a means of implementing this new idea.
- Sec. 12 <u>Proportional Voting</u>: Some jurisdictions allow weighted voting (e.g. irrigation districts -- 85-7-1710 -- allow one vote for every reg. elector owning less than 40 acres and, for those owning more than 40 acres, one vote for every 40 acres owned). This section allows weighting mail ballots in those instances.
- Sec. 13 <u>Distributing materials to electors</u>: Covers what is sent out and how.

SB 169 does not provide for postage on the return/verification envelope (page 9, line 17, for two reasons:

- (1) Years ago, the legislature decided that an elector voting by absentee ballot, rather than the government, should pay the postage for returning that ballot. The mail ballot election, essentially, is one where everyone votes "absentee".
- (2) The voter can avoid paying postage by simply hand delivering his ballot. This is no greater burden than driving or walking to the polls on election day. And \$ .22 isn't too much to ask for the convenience of returning a ballot by mail.

POINT: The two major reasons for providing certain political jurdisdictions with the mail ballot option are to increase participation and lower costs. Studies in Oregon show the first election where voters had to pay their own postage resulted in a 92% "turnout" and not one complaint. As long as we can ensure a high rate of participation, why not ensure the lower cost factor also? A MBE where the voter supplies his or her own \$ .22 stamp lowers the cost to 20% - 40% of a polling place election.

- Sec. 14 When material mailed: All mailed same day -- between the 15th and 25th days before.
- Sec. 15 <u>Voting when elector is absent</u>: Since virtually everyone will be voting as they would if they had requested an absentee ballot, we don't need to provide for much in the way of actual absentee balloting. Only those who will be away for the whole time the election is being conducted (15 to 25 days) need to be provided for. And under this section, they simply provide the address where they would like their ballot mailed.
- Sec. 16 <u>Voting mail ballots</u>: Specifies how a vote is actually cast in a MBE.
- Sec. 17 <u>Replacement ballots --procedure</u>: If a ballot is lost, doesn't get delivered or gets ruined, this provides the mechanism for still getting to vote.

**POINT:** Many may not realize, but even in conventional elections, if you ruin your ballot you can get a replacement.

Sec. 18 <u>Returning marked ballots</u>: May return it on <u>or</u> before election day, either in person or by mail.

POINT: This bill retains the practice of going to the polls on election day and casting your ballot. If a person wants to still do it that way, it's possible.

Sec. 19 <u>Places of Deposit</u>: These are to be like polling places and, on election day itself, they will be open the same hours. If a person likes going to the polls, or doesn't want to pay the postage, or doesn't want to take a chance on his ballot getting lost, or even if it's simply more convenient to hand deliver -- that is provided for. <u>And</u>, he can do it either on or before election day.

> NOTE: Many "places of deposit" functions are very similar to those of a precinct polling place. Under the current system, polling places essentially are places where officials recieve ballots from electors and handle them as provided by law. When that is complete, officials place the ballots in transport boxes, seal those boxes, and transport them to a central location. These aspects are retained for places of deposit in the mail ballot system.

It is not required that ballots be retained at the place of deposit until the close of voting. Transport boxes could be picked up and exchanged at anytime (as is currently allowed for polling places under 13-15-103). This would allow for the ongoing processing of ballots which is one of the "strong points" of mail elections. As long as all statutory procedures are followed (seals, records of seal numbers, certificates of transporters, etc.) there shouldn't be any problem.

Sec. 20 <u>Disposition of Ballots returned in person</u>: This covers how hand delivered ballots are handled.

**NOTE:** This section does <u>not</u> say that a woman, for example, cannot hand deliver her own ballot, her husband's, and her child's. It simply says that if a voter delivers their own ballot, in person, then officials must do certain things (like verify the signature) while that person is there in the office.

This prevents an elector having to make a second trip in because something came up that could have been handled while she was there the first time. This is also the only reason for the log which electors sign -just so questions about the signature can be resolved while the person is actually there and so they won't have to make another trip. The husband's ballot would simply be handled as if it were received in the mail.

- Sec. 21 Disposition of ballots returned by mail: This covers how to handle ballots that are returned by mail.
- Sec. 22 <u>Signature Verification</u>: This is the main way to guard against fraud. It's the same procedure that has been used for absentee ballots for years -- except that it has more protection for the voter (e.g. if there's a problem you can call the voter and have them come in). Right now, under the absentee ballot provision if there's a problem with the signature, etc. the voters ballot is just rejected.

These additional protections for the voter are necessary because everyone's signature will need to be verified, not just the relatively few who now vote by absentee. The protections shouldn't be overly burdensome on officials since processing the ballots will be spread out over two weeks not concentrated on one day.

Sec. 23 Voting by nonregistered electors: Some jurisdictions (e.g. irrigation districts) allow people to vote even if they aren't registered. This section provides for that for MBE. **POINT:** Participation in an election is a right. But registration has long been held to be a reasonable requirement and not an infringement on that right. Likewise, it is reasonable to require a little extra from a non-registered elector who wishes to participate in an MBE. Officials have to have some means for knowing where to mail the ballot and for verifying the signature to prevent fraud. If the jurisdiction feels this section is overly burdensome, then they do not have to choose the mail ballot option.

Any such person would have up to five weeks to comply with this section. Surely that would not be too great an inconvenience.

- Sec. 24 <u>Valid Ballots</u>: This section makes it very clear what must be done in order to have your ballot count.
- Sec. 25 Notices to electors -opportunity to resolve: Every year in almost every county there are absentee ballots which aren't counted because the voter forgot to sign the affidavit or his signature couldn't be verified.

This section provides optimum opportunity to the elector to have his ballot count.

Minor or procedural mistakes would be things like: not signing the affadavit; not enclosing the ballot secrecy envelope in the return/verification envelope (hand delivered); two ballot secrecy envelopes in one return envelope; signing a married name when the registration card has the maiden name; or writing your name on the secrecy envelope.

- Sec. 26 <u>Resolving issues in question</u>: This covers how to resolve any question that comes up as to the validity of a ballot. Provides further safeguards against fraud.
- Sec. 27 <u>Procedure at close of voting</u>: This covers how to proceed when voting is over.
- Sec. 28 <u>Amending 7-13-2236</u>: This was necessary to allow water and sewer district elections in unincorporated areas to be done by mail ballot.
- Sec. 29 <u>Amending 13-1-401</u>: This further allows special districts to use the MBE option.

NOTE: Districts may still hold their elections at other times (with schools or at their annual meeting) if they wish.

Sec. 30 Effective Date: This is so the procedure can be in place before fall in case some areas want to use it -- like perhaps the county water and sewer district in the Lincoln area of Lewis and Clark County.

Non-partisan General Municipal Election		11/8/83	Ravalli	County	Estimated Costs Mail Ballot Election			
	Hamilton	Darby	Stevensville		Hamilton	Darby	Stevensville	
udges	703.60	191.16	246.20	Counting Crew 4x5hr x \$3.25	22.00	22.00	22.00	
allots	166.50	37.00	64.75	Ballots	166.50	37.00	64.75	
dvertising	11.76	11.76	11.76	Advertising	11.76	11.76	11.76	
allot Stamps	9.00	6.00	6.00	Ballot Stamps	9.00	6.00	6.00	
bsentee Ballots	6.00	1.20	2.10	Absentee Ballots	none	none	none	
rec. Register	85.25	15.20	37.35	Precinct Register	none	none	none	
lec Supplies	9.75	6.50	6.50	Elec Supplies	1.00	1.00	1.00	
ent Polling laces		25.00	40.00	Rent Polling Places	none	none	none	
				Postage	301.41	56.27	133.11	
				Print Envelopes	312.00	69.00	162.00	
ost of Elect	991.86	294.42	414.66	Cost of Elect	823.67	203.03	400.62	
otal Vote Cast	527	100	79	Total Predicted Vote cast 70%	1241	232	548	
ost per Vote	1.88	2.94	5.25	Cost per Vote	.66	.88	.73	
otal Registered	1 1773	331	783	Total Registered	1773	331	783	

ý

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee For the record my name is betty fund. I am the Election administrator of Covalli County and Chairman of the Election administration advisory Council which was formed by the Secretary of State. Its purpose was & study problems that plague the Election administration and perhaps offer some solutions. In this Committee we began looking at the mail ballot elections in the fall of 1983 perhaps a way to increase voter participation in our inigation, draining, fire and even municipal elections The full that is before this committee today is a result of several years of research and examination. We feel the mail ballot election has four position points. First and most important are the statistics on voter farticipation. In every mail ballot election that has been peld, they has been significant increase in voter turnout. One outstanding example is an election that was held in Jenn County, Oregon on aug. 10, 1982 The mail ballot farticipation was 92.5% whereas a state-wide election held that same day had a voter turnout of 26.3%

= 3

 $\widehat{O}$ 

a second factor in support of the mail ballot is the cost effectivenes. again, the statistics from finn County one impressive. The cost of each mail ballot Cast was 594 in comparison with the cost of 2.11 per ballot cast in an ordinary election The average cost for the statewide election ballot held on the same day wa 1.17. I would like to add that in the aug. 10th mail ballot election the voter had to put the return postage on the envelope even though all other election had the return portage faid The county officials felt that they was virtually no impact on the voter farticipation due to this change. a third consideration of mail parlotons is the increase in the integrity of the electron' system through the ability to carefully, write, signatures increase control our issuance of correct fallots and through the ability to produce immediate election results. The fruith and last point for your Consideration is that the voter acceptance is overwhelming. a county clerk in (guste) multnomah County Origon states

·· -"I've never conducted an election where I've had so much positivi comment." (ordquote) A would appriciate your support of the Dell. Hash you. 

B

The Bulk States and Antonia States

#### SB 169 HOUSE STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE HEARING 3/13/85

Chairman Sales, Vice-chairman O'Connell, and members of the committee, for the record, my name is Jean Johnson. I work for the Secretary of State's office in elections and special projects.

At issue this morning is whether or not election administrators and certain political jurisdictions have the option to conduct their elections by mail ballot.

I want to give you a brief history of the mail ballot election procedure and what it does.

The city of Monterey, CA actually pioneered this method in 1977 when it became necessary to conduct an election for the creation of a water management district. It was obvious to city officials that such an election standing alone would be very costly and the need to cut those costs led to the creation of the mail ballot method.

In 1981 Oregon became the second state to pass legislation authorizing the mail ballot option. Washington and Kansas followed in 1983. (In 1982 Rochester, New York conducted a single-issue election by mail ballot through a "loophole" in state election laws which excluded the coverage of "special elections limited to local referendum issues."

Actually, Washington has used mail ballots for all voters in every election in precincts of one hundred or less registered electors for around 40 years. Officials there report substantial cost savings and always a 70 - 80% turnout in those precincts. Overall, hundreds of thousands of ballots have been cast by the mail ballot procedure in the eight years since the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District election. Very, very few problems have been reported. The largest mail ballot election was conducted in San Diego, CA in 1981 and involved 432,000 registered voters. We aren't proposing anything like that for Montana!

Secretary Waltermire began looking at the mail ballot precedure over two years ago in response to a number of problems that seemed to plague special districts and small towns like Judith Gap and Moore. There are other individuals here this morning who will address those issues.

Last May, the city of Vancouver conducted the first election by mail under Washington's new law. There were roughly 22,000 eligible voters in that election and I want to show you how it looked to those people.....

As far as the voter is concerned, the procedure is as familiar as the absentee ballot and infinitely more convenient than trying to remember that there's a fire district election, sometime...soon...

As far as Montana's election administrators are concerned, we've had a lot of "hands on" assistance in the creation of SB 169 and we're all satisfied with the result.

The Secretary of State's legal council, Alan Robertson, will present a section by section overview of SB 169. And I'd be happy to answer questions later.

Thank you.

## TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF SENATE BILL 169 (Mail Ballot Elections)

The Arnold, Birely, Danford and Shiloh Drains of Yellowstone County wish to present their written testimony to the House State Administration Committee in support of SB 169.

The drain districts are the type of public entity which can be best served by a mail ballot election.

These four drain districts, like many others, were organized in the 1920's and 1930's when a small number of landowners/farmers in the area of each district petitioned the District Court for an order establishing a drainage district as a corporate body.

Since establishment of the districts the commissioners have, upon the approval of the District Court, periodically certified an assessment to the agent for the Department of Revenue for the County. The assessments are levied and collected with real property taxes. The primary purpose for levies has been to repair and maintain the drainage ditches.

While 50 years ago these districts consisted of farmland, the property within the districts has become substantially subdivided into multi-family and single family residences. For example, the Shiloh Drain District in 1938 consisted of 15 parcels of land owned by 15 individuals. In 1982, the last year in which an assessment was made for Shiloh Drain, there were approximately 585 separate parcels of property within the district whose owners are subject to assessment. The Arnold Drain includes substantially more property owners than the Shiloh Drain. The other two drains are somewhat smaller. The Shiloh Drain assessment in 1982 raised approximately \$3,359.00. The assessments are based on the historic assessed value for a particular parcel of land which depends upon the benefit received by the parcel at the time of construction of the drain ditch. The owners of farmland within the district pay according to that historic acreage charge. However, the drain districts have established a \$1.00 minimum assessment per parcel of property. Eleven of the property owners of Shiloh Drain paid more than \$50.00 on the assessment. By far the greatest number of assessments are \$1.00 to \$2.50 per parcel.

Generally, the residential owners have not been interested in the operation or maintenance of the drain districts. The removal of excess irrigation water and groundwater are historic problems of the district which have little meaning to most of the residents. However, irrigated farmland remains within the districts and continues to need drainage ditches for removal of excess irrigation water and groundwater. The drain districts are not obsolete as entities but are of interest to very few.

The commissioners have been concerned about the expense and difficulty of holding conventional elections for their commissioners. The expense of an election would be far in excess of the amount periodically raised for the maintenance of the drain ditches. It has also been the experience of the commissioners that many, if not most, of the property owners in the district are not interested in voting for the election of the commissioners.

The mail ballot proposal offered a practical solution to the problems of expense and limited interest faced by small public bodies such as drain districts, while assuring that interested citizens have the ability to participate in elections if they desire. In order to make a levy of an assessment, the commissioners must have the list of property owners updated. By presenting this list to the election administrator, the mail ballot procedures can be followed by mailing a ballot to each of the land owners listed. After the election of the commissioners, the need for and amount of an assessment can be determined following the existing statutory procedures.

We believe that the mail ballot offers a simplified procedure for participation of interested citizens in matters such as drain district elections without undue administrative expense. For the reasons presented we urge favorable qonsideration/of SB 169.

LAURA Α. M.

Secretary for Arnold Drainage District Birely Drainage District Danford Drainage District Shiloh Drainage District



League of Women Voters of Montana House committee hearing 1985

<u>SB 169</u> - An act to allow election administrators the option of conducting certain specific elections by mail ballot.

The League of Women Voters asks that this bill be amended.

The attached amendments address specifically the general comments that were made on this bill when it was heard in the Senate. The League believes that ballotting by mail might be very appropriate in certain circumstances and jurisdictions. We also believe that elections by mail should be adopted that great care and attention to detail.

The League's purpose in following election law bills is to assure fair elections that are accessible and understandable to the voters. Because elections take place in all 56 counties and hundreds of smaller political sub-divisions, the law must be absolutely clear as to its application. We believe SB 169 would be much stronger legislation if it were clarified and less ambitious in scope.

The attached amendments address the following major concerns:

- 1. The voter by mail is required to provide postage for the completed ballot. We oppose this "mini poll tax".
- 2. The bill proposes a hybred system of mailing one's ballot or depositing it in a designated place of deposit or taking it to the office of the election administrator or on election day going to possibly additionally designated locations of deposit. All this is confusing, expensive, and raises questions of ballot security. It would be difficult, if not impossible, to maintain a single register of those voting.
- 4. We would like to see candidate elections in third class cities omitted from this act until the system is perfected. (It is interesting to note that elections by mail have proved effective in school elections in other states.)

Special districts covered by SB 169 range widely in size of area and budget. They are not necessarily rural in their constituencies (ie. the Missoula Fire District). In return for being organized as political sub-divisions, these government entities must maintain their responsibility and accountability to the electors in the district. The League suggests that the best and only proper reasons for supporting mail elections is that they offer the voter more convenience than presently exists, and that they often result in higher voter participation for certain types of elections. Cost-effectiveness should be a secondary consideration.

Testimony prepared by Margaret S. Davis, 816 Flowerree, Helena 59601

<u>SB 169</u> - Proposed amendments, League of Women Voters of Montana 3/3/85

- 1. page 1, line 18 after "therefor." STRIKE everything through page 2, line 5.
  - Rationale: This is interpretive verbiage that is covered by the statement of intent and should not be part of statutory law.
- 2. Page, 3, line 10. STRIKE: "at home"

Rationale: Unenforceable and unnecessary language.

3. Page 3, line 23 Insert: New sub-section (6) "The name of the elector shall be entered on the register of those offering to vote in this election."

Rationale: one central registry is important?maintaining proper election controls and ballot security.

- 4. Page 3, line 23. Renumber (6) to (7)
- 5. Page 4, line 2. Renumber (7) to (8)
- 6. Page 4, line 2. STRIKE: "the close of the polls" Insert after "After" the following: "8 pm"

Rationale: The polls, as such, won't be open during a mail ballot election.

7. Page 4, lines 15 through 18. STRIKE all of (b) and renumber this section accordingly.

Rationale: Third class cities are jurisdictions with the potential for major city office campaigns. Until mail ballotting is tried in smaller towns for candidate elections, it would be wise to omit third class cities. Campaigning for an election conducted by mail needs further consideration.

8. page 8, line 2. Insert after "concerned" the following: "no later than 70 days before election day"

Rationale: This would clarify Section 9 so that a governing body would be assured of adequate time (15 days) to respond to the initiative of the election administrator.

9. Page 8, line 9. STRIKE: "The resolution must include a statement of the reasons for the objection."

Rationale: Since the governing body pays for the election, it has no duty to provide this information to the election administrator.

10. Fage 9, line 21. Insert after "a" the following: "postage paid"

Rationale: Elections by nail are very cost-effective even when postage paid envelopes are provided the voters. In most other states this is a requirement. Participation drops when they are not supplied

#### <u>SB 169</u> - LWVMT amendment proposals

3/3/85

11. Page 10, line 11. Insert after "ballots" the following: "except replacement ballots"

Rationale: This would allow the election administrator to meet requests for replacement ballots after the inital mailing date if circumstances permitted.

12. Page 10, line 18. STRIKE: "and until noon the day before the ballots are scheduled to be mailed"

Rationale: This would allow voting in person using replacement ballots at the election administrator's office. The person whose plans changed between the mailing of the ballots and the receipt of the ballots would not be able to vote absentee as this bill is presently written. On the other hand the person who lost their ballot is free to vote any time in person.

13. Page 12, line 7. STRIKE: "Each spoiled ballot must be returned before a new one may be issued."

Ratioanle: While this is desirable, it is not readily enforceable. The same standard is not applied to destroyed or lost ballots.

14. Page 12, lines 9 through 12. STRIKE sub-section (4) in its entirety and renumber accordingly.

Rationale: This sub-section conflicts with (2) and (3). It is not desirable for replacement ballots to be available at a location other than the election administrator's office.

15. Page 13, line 1. STRIKE: "with sufficient pestage affixed"

Rationale: With amendment 10, the duty of providing postage would be born by the governing body and not the voter.

- 16. Page 13, lines 2 through 4. STRIKE subsection (b) in its entirety Insert new Sub-section (b) as follows: "returning it in person to the office of the election administrator."
- 17. Page 13, lines 8 through 25 STRIKE New SECTION 19 in its entirity

E de service

Rationale: Places of deposit other than the election administrator's office or a US post office are not necessary with an election by mail. This section is confusing and potentially costly if places of deposit have to be staffed or serviced to maintain the integrity of the election process.

18. Page 14, line 4 STRIKE "If returned to the election administrator's office"
19. Page 14, line 13 Insert new sub-section (d) äs follows: "record the name of the elector in the official register as having voted."

Rationale: One official register is essential.

20. Page 14, line 13 through page 15, line 5. STRIKE sub-section (2) in its entir2ty and renumber accordingly all of new section 20.

Rationale: This eliminates "the election official on location" and conforms with amendment 17.

21. Page 17, line 3. Insert after "person" the following: "or presenting a sworn affadavit"

Rationale: A personal appearance seems unnecessarily restrictive, when qualifications can also be attested to by other means.

Proposed amendments prepared by Margaret 5. Davis 816 Flowerree, Helena, Montana 59601

# SB 198

#### DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION'S PLANNED TESTIMONY

#### PASSENGER TRAMWAY

Ex, #5

The regulation of Montana's ski tramways is currently the respontibility of the Architecture & Engineering Division within the Department of Administration. To insure the safety of the public while using these tramways, the statutes require all passenger tramways to be registered with our department. In turn, our department is responsible for the establishment of standards for the design, construction and operation of the tramways. In addition, we are required to make annual inspections of each tramway to insure that these standards are followed.

The Tramway Program has two revenue sources. First, an annual fee ranging from \$25 to \$100 is charged, depending on the type of tramway that is operated (i.e. chairlift versus condola). By statute, this fee is deposited in the general fund. The fees are collected by the Department of Administration and result in approximately \$2,000 per year.

Second; an assessment is made on the gross receipts collected from ski lift tickets. As required by statute, these funds are also deposited in the general fund. The gross receipts assessment in each of the past three fiscal years has been approximately \$15,000 to \$18,000. The assessment is collected by the Department of Revenue.

Expenditures for the Tramway Program are funded through a general fund appropriation. Expenditures in each of the past three fiscal years have been approximately \$10,000 - \$13,000.

The handout shows a financial analysis of the program. In the past, there has been a surplus of revenues collected over expenses incurred. This excess, ranging from \$3,000 to \$7,000 per year has remained in the general fund and has not been specifically segregated for use by the tramway program.

However, in section 2, subpart 2 of the bill, the current statute requires that all proceeds of the gross receipts assessment be used only to support the Tramway Program duties of the Department of Administration. A further section of current statute (section 1 of the bill) states that the fees and assessments should generate sufficient revenue to pay for contracted inspection services.

We are proposing to establish a state special revenue fund for the Passenger Tramway Program. Under this bill, revenue collected from the fees and gross receipts assessments would be deposited in the special revenue fund instead of the general fund and be restricted to expenditures for the regulation of all passenger tramways in Montana. In addition, the Department of Administration will also request that the legislative appropriation for expenditures be placed in the special revenue fund. A comparison of revenues and expenses could be easily tracked with the funding change. Any surplus could be held in reserve to allow for possible contingencies, such as emergencies, accidents (such as recent Big Sky accident), lawsuits, or the purchase of sophisticated inspection equipment.

It is important to note that the general fund will not lose the interest earnings from the tramway revenue collections as a result of the proposed funding change. Since there is no statutory authority for this state special revenue fund to receive interest earnings on its cash balance, the earnings will still be credited to the general fund.

JAN/701

(01/10/05)

MONTANA TRAMWAY COUNCIL

## FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

1978 - 1984

F.Y.	Tram Registration Receipts	Gross Receipts	Total
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
78	\$ 1,925.00	\$ 1,100.00	\$ 3,025.00
79	\$ 2,023.00	\$10,928.00	\$12,951.00
80	\$ 2,030.00	\$11,719.00	\$13,749.00
81	\$ 2,083.00	\$ 8,934.00	\$11,017.00
82	\$ 2,145.00	\$15,782.00	\$17,927.00 ·
83	\$ 2,104.00	\$17,451.00	\$19,555.00
84	<u>\$ 2,155.00</u>	\$18,318.00	\$20,473.00
Totals	\$14,465.00	\$84,232.00	\$98,697.00 -

<u>GENE</u>	RAL FUND APPROPPIATIONS	FUNDS EXPENDED
78	\$ 5,600.00	\$ 6,996.00 -
79	\$16,000.00	\$ 7,076.00
80	\$10,800.00	\$ 9,891.00
81	\$12,000.00	\$ 8,714.00
82	\$12,000.00	\$10,542.00
83	\$15,497.00	\$13,384.00
84	\$11,835.00(+\$1,200.00 Supp.)	\$13,031.00
	\$83,732.00 (\$84,932.00)	\$69,634.00

1/200

#### RESPONSE TO TESTIMONY OF THE LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS ON SENATE BILL 169

7.

· · ·

#### ITEM 1: CANDIDATE BLECTIONS

SB 169 PROVIDES: The only candidate elections which are even available for the mail ballot option are:

(a) trustees of special districts but not school districts;

(b) all candidates for municipal office in towns -incorporated areas under 1,000 in population; and

(c) candidates for municipal office in 3rd Class cities (1,000 to 5,000) if the city elects officers on a non-partisan basis.

All other candidate elections of any type are specifically excluded.

**LEAGUE RECOMMENDS:** "... that mail balloting be instituted on a more modest level ..." "... that Sec. 4(b) and (c) on page 4 be struck. Because of the new campaign techniques required for running for a mail election, city and town office candidates should not be among those piloting this system."

**RESPONSE:** This is a policy choice for the legislature to make. Whether candidate elections should be among those allowed to use the mail ballot option -- and if they are, at what level -- is simply a judgment call.

SB 169 is a response to a two year study of recurring problems in the elections area. The cost and frequency of elections are very real problems for small towns. A quick conversation with officials in places like Judith Gap and Moore will verify that fact.

As any rural Montanan knows, politics in communities with only a few hundred people are quite different from politics in the communities where the League has its chapters.

The problems with elections in towns are real and ongoing. The mail ballot option is one possible solution. Disincorporation is another. Forcing them to live with the problem is the third. These are the choices available to the legislature.

The proponents have studied the matter and feel that the mail ballot option is appropriate for candidate elections in towns. We also feel, although less strongly, that the mail ballot option is appropriate for Montana's small cities. But if the legislature wants to exclude 3rd Class cities altogether, or even if it would prefer to expand the proposal to include even partisan elections in 3rd Class cities, the proponents would not object.

#### ITEM 2: POSTAGE

SB 169 PROVIDES: The cost of postage is divided. The government bears the cost of sending materials to the voter. The individual voter bears the cost of mailing the ballot back.

LEAGUE RECOMMENDS: "Any system of voting by mail must provide the voter with a postage paid return envelope."

**RESPONSE:** Just why is return postage a "must"? Under the current system, if an elector wishes to vote, he must get himself to the polls on election day at his own expense. The same would be possible under SB 169.

Anyone who wishes can still vote in the traditional way. The only difference is that they will have already received their ballot in the mail. The voter can avoid paying postage by simply hand delivering the ballot. That is no greater burden than driving to the polls on election day.

The opportunity to mail the ballot back is simply provided as a convenience to the voter. And a very inexpensive convenience at that.

The proponents believe that the vast majority of voters would feel that 22 cents is a small price to pay for that convenience. Those who disagree have the alternative of hand delivering their ballot. In giving the voters the vastly expanded convenience of voting by mail, 22 cents is a very small request to make in return.

#### ITEM 3: INCONSISTENT AND COMPLICATED SECTIONS

**LEAGUE STATES:** "The sections (15, 17, 22 and 25) dealing with absentee balloting, replacement ballots, signature verification, and notice to elector(s) are inconsistent and seem overly complicated."

**RESPONSE:** This comment is not sufficiently specific to allow a response. Its author has been out of town and unavailable for clarification. We have reviewed the sections and do not find how they are inconsistent.

#### ITEM 4: ABSENTEE VOTING

SB 169 PROVIDES: Anyone who will be away for the entire period that the election is being conducted, can, up until noon the day before the ballots are mailed, provide officials with the address he would like his ballot mailed to.

**LEAGUE STATES:** "The opportunity to cast an absentee ballot is very restricted, while replacement ballots would be quite easy to obtain."

**RESPONSE:** What absentee situation does the league see which is not covered satisfactorily? The situation in a mail ballot election is quite different.

Traditionally you need to provide for everyone who will be absent on election day. With mail ballots, however, you only need to provide for those who will be absent for the entire two to three week period that the election is being conducted. And they simply need to provide the alternative address where they would like their ballot sent.

Anyone who leaves town after ballots have been received can simply take their ballot with them and mail it from wherever they are. Anyone who returns home after ballots have been mailed will find their ballot waiting for them when they get home. Only those who are away the whole time need be provided for.

A mail ballot election is almost like everyone voting absentee. The proponents do not see how this is "very restricted."

#### ITEM 5: SECURITY OF PLACES OF DEPOSIT

SB 169 PROVIDES: Places of deposit are designated by the election administrator. These are where people may hand deliver their ballots. They must be available throughout the voting period with more possible on election day itself. A transport box, secured as provided by law, is available at each and is where the on-location officials are to deposit the ballots.

**LEAGUE STATES:** "Section 19 regarding places of deposit for completed ballots does not meet standard criteria for a secure centralized depository."

**RESPONSE:** The proponents are unclear what is meant by "secure, centralized depository" and are unaware of any "standard criteria."

Our system is set up with a series of precincts where people go to cast their ballots. Places of deposit are like precinct polling places.

The only differences are: 1) not as many places of deposit are needed because so many of the voters will return their ballots by mail; 2) thus, there probably won't be one in each precinct; 3) people will most likely bring their ballots in already voted although its possible to vote it right there; 4) people will most likely bring in a ballot, althought if its been lost, etc., they can obtain a replacement; 5) for these reasons they're called "places of deposit" instead of "precinct polling places."

Many other functions are very similar. Under the current system, precinct polling places essentially are places where officials receive ballots from electors and handle them as provided by law. When that is complete, officials place the ballots in transport boxes, seal those boxes, and transport them to a central location. These aspects are retained for places of deposit in the mail ballot system.

#### ITEM 6: AVAILABILITY OF PLACES OF DEPOSIT

SB 169 PROVIDES: There will be places where people can return their ballots in person. And if they do, officials will do some of the processing while the elector is right there so that if any questions come up they can be resolved with the elector right then.

**LEAGUE STATES:** "Sections 19 and 20 taken together would undercut the strong points of having an election by mail!"

**RESPONSE:** We are not sure what the point is. It seems however that the League is suggesting that just having places where ballots can be returned in person undercuts the advantages of mail elections. We don't agree.

Please note that no one is required to deliver their ballot in person, but it is allowed. People are not prohibited from having someone else deliver their ballot for them. Section 18 is permissive, and sections 16 and 24 only require return (by any means) prior to the close of voting on election day. Section 20 only requires that if a ballot is returned in person, certain things must be done while the voter is right there. It is not required that ballots be retained at the place of deposit until the close of voting. Transport boxes could be picked up and exchanged at anytime (as is currently allowed for polling places under 13-15-103). This would allow for the ongoing processing of ballots which is one of the "strong points" of mail elections. As long as all statutory procedures are followed (seals, records of seal numbers, certificates of transporters, etc.) there shouldn't be any problem.

#### ITEM 7: INITIATION OF MAIL BALLOT OPTION

SB 169 PROVIDES: Either the governing body or the election administrator can start the process, and either can stop it. The consent of both is required or the mail ballot option cannot be used.

**LEAGUE STATES:** "Since the political sub-division pays the cost of the election, the decision should rest with the governing body of the sub-division, if the election administrator agrees that such an election would be feasible. Giving broad discretion solely to the election administrator (page 7, lines 5-7) is not recommended by the League."

**RESPONSE:** A quick review of sections 7, 8, 9 and 10 should reveal that either can start it and either can stop it. Section 10 provides that if the governing body says no, then it can't be done by mail ballot. The language challenged by the League simply gives the same option to the election administrator. We do not agree that that is an overly broad grant of discretion.

Mail ballot elections are entirely new to Montana. The proponents feel strongly that, at least in the beginning, extra measures must be taken to guard against mistakes. We would not be comfortable having an irrigation district, for example, take on this new procedure on their own.

That is why the election administrator is injected in the process. That is also the reason for the written plan and its review by the Secretary of State. The jurisdiction is given a "final say" because it's their election. The election administrator is given a "final say" because it's a new process and she's the one with the knowledge and experience to ensure that is implemented properly.

Over time, once the jurisdictions are familiar with the process, it may be possible to reduce the election administrator's discretion in this area and transfer more to the governing body by itself. But we need to have some experience with this system first.

#### ITEM 8: STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

SB 169 PROVIDES: A statement of purpose containing various policy considerations.

LEAGUE RECOMMENDS: "Finally, we would ask that all the language in Section 1 following "therefor." on line 14, page 1, be stricken. These sentences are the expression of opinions that do not accurately reflect how Montanans view their democratic system of government."

**RESPONSE:** Statements of purpose are only useful as statutory expressions of legislative intent. They often aid in ensuring that any subsequent judicial interpretation of the legislation will be consistent with the reasons for the legislative action.

They are expressions of opinion. But once enacted, they are the expression of legislative opinion. The proponents disagree with the League's assessment that any consideration of cost-effectiveness is irrevalent when it comes to elections.

We disagree that "the best and only truly proper reasons for supporting" the mail ballot option are that "they offer the voter more convenience" and "often result in higher voter participation." We believe that if these things occur because of a method which is also cost-effective, then that is an equally valid and proper reason for supporting the mail ballot concept.



Montana Public Interest Research Group

**729 Keith Avenue ● Missoula, MT. 59801 ● (406) 721-6040** 532 North Warren Helena, MT. 59601 (406)443-5155

TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF SB169

MR CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE, MY NAME IS TERI ENGLAND. I AM SPEAKING TODAY, ON BEHALF OF THE MONTANA PUBLIC INTEREST RESEARCH GROUP. MONTPIRG IS DIRECTED AND FUNDED BY UNIVERSITY OF MONTANA STUDENTS. WE SUPPORT SB169.

DURING THE LAST CAMPAIGN YEAR, MONTPIRG PARTICIPATED IN THE NATIONAL STUDENT VOTER REGISTRATION DRIVE. WE REGISTERED OVER 8400 VOTERS DURING THE EFFORT. ALONG WITH REGISTERING VOTERS, WE TRY TO EDUCATE PEOPLE ON EFFECTIVE CITIZEN PARTICIPATION. AS AN ORGANIZATION, WE STRIVE TO INCREASE CITIZEN PARTICIPATION IN THE VOTING PROCESS. SB169 PROVIDES AN OPTION TO ELECTION ADMINISTRATORS THAT HAS PROVEN IN OTHER STATES TO ENHANCE VOTER TURNOUT. VOTER TURNOUT IN SPECIAL ELECTIONS AND BALLOT ISSUES IS GENERALLY LOW. SB169 WOULD SERVE TO INCREASE VOTER PARTICIPATION. INCREASING CITIZEN PARTICIPATION IN ALL ELECTIONS STRENGHTENS OUR DEMOCRACY. MONTPIRG URGES YOUR SUPPORT OF SB169.

THANK YOU FOR YOUR TIME AND CONSIDERATION.

#### VISITORS' REGISTER

VIS	ITORS' REGISTER	FEE	
BILL NO. <u>58/97</u> SPONSOR	DATE <u>3/13/6</u>	جري ا	
NAME (please print)	RESIDENCE	SUPPORT	OPPOSE
KAREN MULLO	Halene		
Phil Hauck	1)		
Gary to Perotite	ŧ		
Fe			

IF YOU CARE TO WRITE COMMENTS, ASK SECRETARY FOR WITNESS STATEMENT FORM.

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED STATEMENT WITH SECRETARY.

-. ..

Hunse St	TORS' REGISTER ute Admm committee		
	DATE 13 MAN	85	
NAME (please print)	RESIDENCE	SUPPORT	OPPOSE
Margaret 5. Davis	MANT ME However Helena Mt. assn. Clirks-Recorders		AMENT
Joanne Perce	Fort Benton		
felly sund	Panalli Co Annalla Mt. water Develop. Assiv.	X	-
L.m. Kelly	Mt. IRRigators, INC.	$\mathcal{X}$	
HLAN ROBERTSON	SEC. OF. ST.	×	
l'imorris	MACO	X	
ilen Graland	NUB FRIBE		
Report Aborea	Comma Case	×	
Alec Lanson	Stars and the	~~	
Lu Bastlett	Luieis & Clark Co. Clerk & Recorder	K.	
Jean U. Johnson	Alc of Atala		
			****

IF YOU CARE TO WRITE COMMENTS, ASK SECRETARY FOR WITNESS STATEMENT FORM

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED STATEMENT WITH SECRETARY.

.

-

- -

### VISITORS' REGISTER

	COMMITTE	E		
BILL NO. <u>53 164</u> DATE				
NAME (please print) Dave Ashley	RESIDENCE 17.01004	SUPPORT		

IF YOU CARE TO WRITE COMMENTS, ASK SECRETARY FOR WITNESS STATEMENT FORM.

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED STATEMENT WITH SECRETARY.

-

	COMMITT	EE		
BILL NO. <u>SR /6</u> DATE SPONSOR				
NAME (please print) Dave Ashlay	RESIDENCE Nelen	SUPPORT OPPOSE		
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			

IF YOU CARE TO WRITE COMMENTS, ASK SECRETARY FOR WITNESS STATEMENT FORM

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED STATEMENT WITH SECRETARY.